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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Trustees of Honywood Community Science School (the Academy, the Trust or the School) present their
Annual Report together with the financial statements and Auditors’ Report of the Charitable Company for the
period 1st September 2018 to 31st August 2019. The Annual Report serves the purposes of both a Trustees’
Report and a Directors’ Report under company faw.

The Trust operates an Academy for pupils aged 11 to 16 serving a catchment area in north Essex. It has a pupil
capacity of 1050 and had a roll of 906 in the school census on 3 October 2019.

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution

The Academy is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's
Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents.

The Trustees of Honywood Community Science School are also the Directors of the Charitable Company for the
purposes of company law. The Charitable Company operates as Honywood Community Science School.

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year and to the date these accounts are approved are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1

Members’ Liability

Each Member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease to be a Member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased
to be a Member.

Trustees’ Indemnities

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, every Trustee or other Officer of the Academy shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Academy against any liability incurred by them in that capacity in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is given in favour or in which they are acquitted or
in connection with any application in which relief is granted to them by the court from liability for negligence,
default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to affairs of the Academy.

The insurance provides cover of up to £2m on any one claim.
Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The Parent Trustees are elected by the Parent Body of the School. The staff Trustees are elected by the
School's staff. The community Trustees are appointed by the Members of the Academy. Community Trustees
may be re-appointed after the end of their term of office.

Individuals may request to join the Board of Trustees and the Members of the Academy may decide to invite one
of these individuals to join should a vacancy arise. The management of the Company is the responsibility of the
Trustees who are appointed under the terms of the Articles of Association. Trustees are subject to retirement
after a term of 4 years. After the term they are eligible for re-election at the meeting at which they retire.

Policies and Procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

All new Trustees will be given an opportunity to have a tour of the School and the chance to meet with staff and
learners. All Trustees are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and
~ other documents that they will need to undertake their role as Trustees. As there are normally only a few new
Trustees in any one year, induction tends to be done informally and is tailored specifically to the individual.
Trustees also take advantage of external courses offered however most training is delivered in house. A log is
kept of all Trustee training and reviewed regularly at the Board meetings.
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Organisational Structure

The management structure consists of four levels; the Members, who have a role similar to share holders of a
company limited by shares, the Trustees, Trustee Committees and the Leadership Team. The Trustees are
responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the School by the use of
budgets and senior staff appointments. The day to day running of the School is delegated to the Headteacher in
the capacity as the Chief Executive, supported by the Leadership Team. The Headteacher undertakes the key
- leadership role overseeing educational, pastoral and administrative functions in consultation with the Leadership
Team. The day to day administration is undertaken within the policies and procedures approved by the Board of
Trustees. Only significant expenditure decisions and major capital projects should be referred to the Trustees
for prior approval. Committees of the Governing Body have delegated responsibilities.

The Headteacher has been appointed as a Trustee, is the Principal Accounting Officer and attends all Governing
Body meetings. Members of the Leadership Team are invited to be in attendance at appropriate Trustees’
meetings. Committees exist for Curriculum and Resources (which includes Audit) which meet every half term
with four full Governing body meetings per year.

There is also a Hearings Committee, a Learner Discipline Committee, a Staff Discibline Committee, a
Headteacher's Appraisal Committee & Pay Committee and Appeals Committees which meet when required. All
Trustees give their time to the role freely, no remuneration and expenses are claimed.

The Leadership Team is as noted on Page 1. These managers manage the School at an executive level
implementing the policies laid down by the Trustees and reporting back to them.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The arrangements for setting pay and remuneration are the same for all the Trust's personnel. The key
management posts are included in the Honywood Job Rankings, a document which forms part of the Trust’'s Pay
Policy. This policy is reviewed for relevance to the current posts operating within the Trust and benchmarked
against the nationally published information relating to teaching and support posts and is agreed annually by
Trustees. Each post is allocated a five point pay range on the Honywood Pay Scale. The Honywood Pay Scale is
reviewed according to the Trust's Pay Policy and is agreed annually by the Trustees.

All key management personnel undergo an annual appraisal of their performance, carried out by the
Headteacher. The outcomes of these reviews are used to inform and determine the award of an increment in
pay. The Headteacher's annual appraisal is carried out by the Headteacher's Appraisal Committee, comprised of
the Chair and Vice Chair of Trustees and an Education Consultant. The Headteacher's Pay Committee,
comprised of 3 Trustees from the Chair, Vice Chair, and Chairs of the 3 main Committees, informed by the
outcome of the Headteacher's appraisal, will determine the award of an increment .in pay. All potential
increments are included in the budget, which was set earlier in the year, and proposed awards, once determined
by the appraisal process, are brought to the Resources Committee for ratification.
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019
Trade union facility time
Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant Full-time equivalent employee number
union officials during the relevant period

Three ' 3 FTE

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of Employees
0%

1%-50% Three

51%-99%

100%

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

The total cost of facility time £1,110
The total pay bill £4,655,825
The percentage of the total pay bill 0.024%

spent on facility time, calculated as:
(total cost of facility time + total pay bill) x 100

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a

percentage of total pad facility time hours calculated as:

(total hours spent on paid trade union activities by

relevant union officials during the relevant period + total paid facility time hours) x 100

0%

Related Parties & Other Connected Charities & Organisations

The School is part of a collaboration of schools in the Braintree area. It carries out a series of partnership
Programmes that involve both staff and learners. The School is also a member of the Colchester SCITT cluster
group and Mid Essex ITT and is a strategic partner in the Professional Learning Network where it leads on NQT
development and training.

Objectives and Activities

Objects and Aims

The core purpbse of the School is to ensure our learners are happy and successful now and throughout their
lives. .

Objectives, Stfategies and Activities are detailed in the following School Development Plan.
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(A Company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL

Connecting communities; building equity and well-being - Strategic Overview

Our vision is based on a belief that our School should operate as the beating heart of the communities it serves.
To imbue a sense of challenge and aspiration in all our communities through the development of our core values
so that all learners achieve happiness, social equity and economic well-being; now and in the future.

We Value: Trust; Respect; Equity; Excellence; Opportunity; Relationships; Resilience; Independence; Innovation

Ofsted Focus

Leadership and Management

Personal Development, Behaviour & Welfare

Teaching, Learning &
Assessment

L&M

promote equity
and w ell being.

attributes and
independence
needed to
embrace, and
positively
contribute to,
society.

Learners develop
a rich vocabulary
and contextual
aw areness
through a
culturally
enriching
curriculum.

based evaluation
and analysis of
learning by
teachers enables
personalised
learning design
and drives
continual
improvement in
the classroom
through the
sharing of best
practice.

evaluation and
challenge and a
deep aspiration to
achieve.
excellence and
impact.

LT Group . 1. Well-being 2. Curriculum
Vision and 1.1 Moral Capital | 1.2 Social Capital 1.3 Cuttural 2.1 Knowledge (2.2 Organisational] 2.3 Professional
Values (expectations and (dual focus Capital Capital Capital Capital
priorities respect) curriculum & (enrichment) (teaching & (challenging & | (leadership dev)
relationships) learning) evaluating
performance)

Strategic Intent | Day to day all All learners leave jAuthentic learning|Deep know ledge (At every level of |Leadership
learners and staff {Honywood fully {is embedded in all |acquisition the organisation |across the school
live through our  |prepared w ith the Jaspects of the underpins all there is a culture |is both learning
core values and |resilience, curriculum. learning. Evidence]of performance |and teacher

centered and
drives continual
improvement
through
collaboration and
the sharing of
best practice.
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Core priorities
2018 -2019

1.1a: Learners, |1.2a: Cohort 1.3a: Qur 2.1a: An authentic}2.2a: Streamline §2.3a: Staff
families, and staff | Teams work approach to coaching data collection learning allows
are clear in their Jcohesively to enrichment programme is and reporting for cross-
understanding of jdesign and opportunities is  |informed by curricular
our expectations }develop a 5 year |enhanced and w hole staff collaboration
in embracing our |programme that |provides equity of |learning w alk
respect code in all|w ill give children |experience for all |opportunities
situations aweli rounded

LS3 curriculum

w hich will help

them to develop

their social, moral,

cultural and

know ledge

capital.
1.1b: Staff feel  |1.2b: Subject 1.3b: We facilitate | 2.1b: Enabling 2.2b: Reduce 2.3b: Team
empow ered and |Teams evaluate |stronger cohesion|staff to number of data development
confident, and are}and review the |of cultural experience best |systems to avoid |opportunities
consistent in their |design of learning |enrichment practice in other |duplication and to |prioritised in
approach when |experiences experiences settings allow for greater |timetable design

challenging w hich provide across all areas inter connectivity
learners w ho are |opportunities for {of the curriculum
not meeting learners to
expectations develop their
: learning attributes
w ithin subject
learning

1.1c: A setof 1.3c: The 2.1¢: Coaching 2.2c: Develop 2.3c: Develop
principles around progress of routinely happens |staff learning leadership
the dress code is cultural growth |at an individual opportunities to | capacity at all
established and and development |and team level support micro and |levels of the
implemented for all learners macro data organisation
consistently better meets the analysis to inform

needs at each learning design

stage of the 5

year journey they

are with us
1.1d: All 2.1d: Learning 2.3d: Staff
stakeholders in’ timelines are learning
the community transparent in programme
promote good clearly ensures effective
choices and communicating induction and

endorse our
respect code

subject cycles of
ignite, study and
show case

transition
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(A Company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL

2.1e: Current 2.3e: Establishing
research a staff teamto
continues to drive lead on the
pedagogy and development of
best practice the enrichment
programme
...50 that... There is There is Colleagues and | There is greater All staff are Leadership
IMPACT consistency and |consistency in the|the community are|consistency in the confident in opportunities
clarity in the approach to more invested in |quality of teaching] analysing data, across the
understanding of, | providing rich and and have a and learning, with| and using it to organisation
and fairness in rew arding clearer the identification | more accurately | enable all parties
the approach to, | opportunities for | understanding of | and sharing of inform to further develop
supporting staff, learners to the approach and| best practice personalised their confidence
learners and their| develop their offer of developing a learning design, | and capacity for
families in learning attributes enrichment higher level of leading to improvement
embracing, so that they are | experiences at questioning, improved
endorsing and happy and Honyw ood challenge, progress and
modelling all successful now feedback and outcomes
aspects of the | and in the future engagement

respect code
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL

(A Company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Connecting communities; building equity and well-being - Moral Capital

Strategic Intent 1.1: Day to day ali learners and staff live through our core values and promote equity and well

being.

Core Priorities

Current Picture (April - July
2018) / Sep 18 Baseline

Desired Outcomes

Im pact and Evaluation
(How will success be
measured?)

1.1a; Learners, families, and
staff are clear in their
understanding of our
expectations in embracing our
respect code in all situations

1.1a: We have a respect code
w hich is understood by
learners, families and staff. it
centres around respect for
oneself, others and the world
around. The respect code is
not alw ays adhered to,
particularly in areas outside of
the classroom by some
learners.

1.1a: The respect code is
understood and embraced in all
aspects of school life. A
consistent approach to the
respect code is adhered to by
staff. Learners live through the
values of the respect code and
understand expectations
clearly and that consequences
are given consistently and
fairly. This is all supported by
families.

1.1a: Do learners conduct
themselves in a respectful
manner?

In classrooms; at
break/lunchtimes, on the buses,
outside of school?

Do staff endorse the respect
code at all times and challenge
all learners accordingly?

1.1b: Staff feel empow ered,
confident and are consistent in
their approach w hen
challenging learners who are
not meeting expectations

1.1b: There are guidelines for
staff to follow in regards to
consequencing learners who
are not meeting expectations,
but there is not a central
system to help monitor and
track progress for learners in
regards to their learning and
the relationship it has w ith their
behaviour and conduct. There
is an inconsistent approach to
challenging and consequencing
learners w ho are not meeting’
expectations.

1.1b: Guidelines are in place to
support staff with their
decision making regarding
learners w ho are not meeting
the expectations set. Staff are
fully aw are of w hat things they
should be challenging in
regards to learners breaking
the respect code. Staff feel
confident with challenging
learners w ho are not meeting
expectations.
Recording/tracking systems are
set up via the use of SIMs so
that all information regarding a
learner is held centrally and
any member of staff can
access the information.

1.1b; Are there guidelines in
place to support staff with
decision making?

Do these enable staff to not
lose sight of the individuat and
manage situations positively
and constructively?

Have staff had access to
training to support themw ith
managing challenging learners
and situations?

Do all staff feel confident w ith
challenging all learners w ho
are not meeting the
expectations of the respect
code?

Is there a clear
tracking/monitoring system set
up to support staff with
managing learners?
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL

(A Company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1.1c: A set of principles around
the dress code is established
and implemented consistently

1.1c: The published dress code
is not being adhered to, there is
a lack of clarity for learners,
families and staff. Staff are
unsure w hat the expectations
are in regards to dress code
and therefore not all of them

w il challenge w hat they see.
Learners do not look smart.

1.1¢: An agreed set of
principles around dress code is
established and is implemented
consistently. There is clarity
amongst learners, staff and
families around the
expectations of the dress
code. All staff take a consistent
approach tow ards all learners,
and learners w ho are not
meeting expectations are
challenged by all and
appropriate action is taken.
Learners look smart and take
pride in their appearance

1.1¢: Does the dress code
published match up w ith w hat
the learners are w earing?

Are there guidelines for staff to
follow to support themw ith
challenging learners and is this
fully supported by Line
Managers and the Leadership
Team?

Are learners dealt with
consistently and fairly if they
are not meeting the dress code
expectations?

Do learners look smart and take
pride in their appearance?

1.1d: All stakeholders in the
community promote good
choices and endorse our
respect code

1.1d: Most staff will challenge
most learners if they are not
meeting the expectations of the
respect code. There is an
inconsistent approach by staff
w ith endorsing the respect
code and encouraging good
choices fromlearners.

1.1d: Mobile phone policy is
implemented and adhered to.
Processes and guidelines are
clear to all stakeholders to
support their understanding of
the respect code. This enables
learners to make good choices
w hich are promoted by staff
and supported by families.

1.1d: Do learners have their
mobile phones out in sessions?

Do learners make good choices
in regards to their conduct
inside and outside of school?

Are all stakeholders clear as to
their role in promoting good
choices w hich endorses the
respect code?

Strategic Intent 1.1 Outcome Summary: So that....There is consistency and clarity in the understanding of,
and fairness in the approach to, supporting staff, learners and their families in embracing, endorsing and
modelling all aspects of the respect code
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Connecting communities; building equity and well-being - Social Capital

Strategic Intent 1.2: All learners leave Honywood fully prepared with the resilience, attributes and independence

needed to embrace, and positively contribute to, society

Core Priorities

Current Picture (April - July
2018) / Sep 18 Baseline

Desired Outcomes

Impact and Evaluation

(How will success be
measured?)

1.2a: Cohort Teams w ork
cohesively to design and
develop a 5 year programme
that will give youngsters awell
rounded LS3 curriculum w hich
w ill help them to develop their
social, cultural and know ledge
capital.

1.2a: Currently, Cohort Leaders
use the Cohort Leader
Conference to meet annually as
an opportunity to agree on the
design of the LS3 curriculum
for each cohort over the
coming year.

Cohort Teams/LGLs contribute
to the resourcing of the agreed
activities. The designs are
flexible to accommodate
challenges that may be
presented by forthcoming
events in the school calendar.

Resources are generally kept in
each Cohort Team's folder on
the shared area.

The Quintet Learning
Programme is disconnected
fromthe LS3 curriculum, and
Cohort Leaders have minimal
involvement in its design and
cohesion with the w ork of the
Cohort Teams

Minimal opportunities for Cohort
Leaders to work together as a
collective team.

Currently there is a range in the
involvement of Cohort Teams in
the design and clarity in the
delivery of the LS3 programme
including assemblies.

1.2a: Cohort Leaders work
cohesively and meet regularly
to develop, maintain and review
a 5 year programme that will
provide a fluid, continuous
development experience for
youngsters as they progress
through the school.

Resources are kept and
maintained in one folder in
Google Site/Drive that is
accessible to all Cohort Teams
and Learners.

The LS3 curriculum is shared
with parents, carers and
learners in the same w ay that
course guides for each subject
area are published at the
beginning of every term.

The introduction of an
Enrichment Programme allow s
enrichment activities and
challenges to become
embedded in the curriculum,
with all cohorts w orking
together to compete against
different teams.

Cohort Leaders w ork
cohesively with the Enrichment
team, sharing, developing and
planning resources for
learners.

Key events in the school
calendar, including trips and
visits, are attributed to the
Enrichment programme.

1.2a:Is a clear, defined LS3
curriculum plan in place for
every Cohort?

Are all LS3 resources available
on Google Site/Drive?

Have Cohort Leaders planned
for the progression of their
Cohorts through a 5 year
programme?

Are LS3 Curriculum Guides
available for each Cohort, and
shared w ith families at the
beginning of each term?

Have opportunities for
Enrichment Challenges been
designed and introduced into
the LS3 curriculum?

Are Cohort Leaders and the
Enrichment Team w orking
together to promote the
curriculum to youngsters and
their families?
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL

(A Company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

1.2b: Subject Teams evaluate
and review the design of
learning experiences w hich
provide opportunities for
learners to develop their
learning attributes w ithin
subject learning

1.2b: Currently there is an
inconsistency amongst subject
team designs for learning in the
use of learning attributes within
subject learning.

Show casing timeframes had
been stipulated at set times for
all youngsters in C7 and C8 as

part of the initial curriculum
overview template used for all
subject teams.

Subject teams use of learning
attributes at KS4 is more
discrete and often is implicit in
use.

1.2b: Subject teams evaluate
and review their designs for
learning regularly as part of
good practice reflecting on the
quality and consistency of
these w ith learning attributes
fully embedded w ithin at KS3.

Subject team course guides
identify w hen ignite, study and
reflection / show casing are to

take place throughout their
study timelines and these are
regularly shared w ith learners
and families.

The timetable design is
constructed to enable subject

1.2b: Do subject teams have a
clear curriculum plan for each
Cohort?

Are all resources available on
Subject Google sites?

Are Curriculum Course Guides
available for each Cohort, and
shared w ith families at the
beginning of each term?

Do learners have an
aw areness of the learning
attributes?

teams (or part of teanms) time to
regularly review and reflect on
learning as part of consistently
timed subject development
sessions w ithin the school day.

Strategic Intent 1.2 Outcome Summary: So that....There is consistency in the approach to providing rich and
rewarding opportunities for learners to develop their learning attributes so that they are happy and successful

now and in the future
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL

(A Company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Connecting communities; building equity and well-being - Cultural Capital

Strategic Intent 1.3: Authentic learning is embedded in all aspects of the curriculum. Learners develop a rich

vocabulary and contextual awareness through a culturally enriching curriculum.

Core Priorities

Current Picture (April - July
2018) / Sep 18 Baseline

‘'Desired Outcomes

Impact and Evaluation
(How will success be
measured?)

1.3a: Our approach to
enrichment opportunities is
enhanced and provides
equity of experience for all.

1.3a: Teams propose
enrichment opportunities in
a silo fashion. Equity is not
achieved.

1.3a: An Enrichment Team
coordinates opportunities
that take into consideration
the principles of offering a
broad and balanced offer.
Equity is achieved. An
Enrichment Brochure is
created and available.

1.3a: Has an Enrichment
Team been established?

Has an Enrichment
Brochure been created and
made available?

Is there a broad and
balanced offer of
enrichment experiences?

1.3b: We facilitate stronger
cohesion of cultural
enrichment experiences
across all areas of the
curriculum.

1.3b: Teams propose
enrichment opportunities in
a silo fashion. Some cross
curricular links or
coordinated approaches
existsuch as week 37 or
the summer arts festival
efc.

1.3b: An Enrichment Team
designs 3 enrichment
weeks that facilitate a
stronger cohesion of
cultural enrichment
experiences across all
areas of the curriculum.

1.3b: Are 3 Enrichment
weeks designed, resourced
and delivered?

Are the Enrichment weeks
positively received by all
stakeholder involved?

1.3c: The growth and
development of cultural
capital for all learners better
meets the needs ateach
stage of the 5 year journey
they are with us.

1.3c: My Learning Attributes
existbut are not fully
embedded in learning
design and experiences. A
dual focus curriculum is
offered at Honywood.
Ignition exists in all
subjects (connectand
challenge should therefore
be authentic). A5 year
journey of enrichment offer
has notbeen coordinated
or established formally.

1.3c: Aclear journey of
growth and dewelopmentis
explicitly mapped out
throughout a 5 year journey
of enrichment experiences.
My Learning Aftributes are
fully embedded in all
aspects of the curriculum,
including the Enrichment
Programme at Honywood.
Cultural Capital builds on
the principles of
understanding myself,
others and the world
around me in all contexts of
the young people's lives. As
an outcome the growth of
cultural capital is equitable.

1.3c: Does equity existin
our cultural capital offer?

Has the offer of growth and
dewelopment of cultural
capital been explicitly
mapped over 5 years?

Are MLAs fullyembedded in
Cultural Capital?

Is the information relating to
the design of the
Enrichment Curriculum
accessible, and understood
byall?

Strategic Intent 1.3 Outcome Summary: So that...

.Colleagues and the community are more invested in and

have a clearer understanding of the approach and offer of enrichment experiences at Honywood
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019
Connecting communities; building equity and well-being - Knowledge Capital
Strategic Intent 2.1 Deep knowledge acquisition underpins all learning. Evidence-based evaluation and

analysis of learning by teachers enables personalised learning design and drives continual improvement through
the sharing of best practice

Core Priorities

Current Picture (April - July
2018) / Sep 18 Baseline

Desired Outcomes

Impact and Evaluation

(How will success be
measured?)

2.1a: An authentic coaching
programme is informed by
whole staff learning walk
opportunities

2.1a: Currently ad hoc
learning walks take place
as necessary. Open door
policyis embraced.

2.1a: Learning walks are
common practice across
subject teams. Middle
leaders frequently evaluate
the quality of teaching and
learning.

2.1a: Are learning walks
happening in all subject
teams?

Is best practice routinely
identified?

How has the evaluation of
teaching and learning
informed stafflearning?

2.1b: Staff to experience
best practice in other
settings

2.1b: Most colleagues have
limited exposure to other
settings. There is an offer of|
optional internships,
secondments leadership
learning and ad hoc visits.

2.1b: All colleagues plan
for, experience and evaluate
best practice in at lea7st
one other setting. Learning
is shared within the
organisation and best
practice applied.

2.1b: Has the focus of each
visit been clearly identified?
Have all colleagues
experienced atleastone
other setting?

How visible is the
application of best practice?

2.1c: Coaching routinely
happens at an individual’
and team level

2.1c: Coaching is optional
and uptake is limited.
Specific subject teams have
been targeted.

2.1c: Acoaching
programme is available to
everyone and is embraced
by all. There is a higher
quality of practice and
pedagogy across the
organisation.

2.1c: Is coaching
commonplace?

Do staffrecognise the
benefit of coaching?

Do staff regularly identify
and actupon areas of
development?

2.1d: Learning timelines
are transparentin clearly
communicating subject
cycles of ignite, study and
showcase

2.1d: Course guides and
studytimelines are shared
via website with families.
These are updated termly.
Study periods are
determined at whole school
level.

2.1d: Subjectteams have
autonomy to determine their|
learning timelines. The
quality of study and
showcasing is higher.
Learners are aware of
showcasing expectations.

2.1d: Do subjectlearning
timelines clearly outline
study periods?

Can learners better narrate
their learning journeyin
reviews and showcasing?
Are study opportunities
effectively designed and
scaffolded?

2.1e: Currentresearch
continues to drive pedagogy|
and bestpractice

2.1e: Research is not
consistently used to drive
pedagogy. Momentum is
not maintained, and impact
of research on practice is
rarely evaluated.

2.1e: Research informs
development of practice
and pedagogy, impactis
evaluated and best practice
is shared across the
organisation. Research
feeds more explicitly into
the stafflearning
programme.

2.1e:Is primaryand
secondary research active
in the organisation and
accessible by all?

Are colleagues proactive in
applying and evaluating
research in their daily
practice?

Strategic Intent 2.1 Outcome Summary: So that....There is greater consistency in the quality of teaching and
learning, with the identification and sharing of best practice developing a higher level of questioning, challenge,
feedback and engagement
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Connecting communities; building equity and weli-being - Organisational Capital

Strategic Intent 2.2: At every level of the organisation there is a culture of performance evaluation and

challenge and a deep aspiration to achieve excellence.

Core Priorities

Current Picture (April -
July 2018) / Sep 18
Baseline

Desired Outcomes

Impact and Evaluation
(How will success be
measured?)

2.2a: Streamline data collection
and reporting

2.2a: Lack of clarity and
consistency in the use of P
scores betw een Cohort 7 and
Cohort 10 making it difficult for
learners and families to see
progress and misinterpretations
do occur.

2.2a: Subject teams given
autonomy in designing
assessments to feed into

w hole school evaluation.
Reports are meaningful to
learners and families

Raw scores/Scaled score
(average).

2.2a: Are learners able to
communicate the progress they
are making?

Do learners feel more
motivated as a result?

Is the evaluation of individual
learner progress is more
accurate?

2.2b: Reduce number of data
systems to avoid duplication
and to allow from or greater
inter connectivity

2.2b: We have several data
systems, w hich overlap and do
not necessarily w ork together
cohesively. Sims, G4S, MLP
(Rio).

2.2b: One data systemthat can
cover all necessary
requirements of school life.
Staff use this system
efficiently, accurately and
consistently to improve
youngster outcomes.

2.2b: Do staff feel more
confident in the system?

Do metrics show high staff
engagement?

2.2c: Develop staff learning
opportunities to support micro
and macro data analysis to
inform learning design

2.2¢: There is broad continuum
of staff use of data. Some staff
feel disempow ered to use data
through misconceptions of its
usage. Some colleagues are
not skilled in using data to
support learner progress.

2.2c: Staff use data confidently
to evaluate and inform teaching
and learning. There is a
collective understanding
across the organisation of the
purpose of data and how it can
be used to support learners.

2.2c¢: Do staff feel more
confident in the use of data?

Has the quality of teaching and
learning improved?

Is personalised learning is
evident in sessions?

Are learner outcomes are
improving?

Strategic Intent 2.2 Outcome Summary: So that....All staff are confident in analysing data, and using it to more

accurately inform personalised learning design, leading to improved progress and outcomes
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Connecting communities; building equity and well-being - Professional Capital

Strategic Intent 2.3: Leadership across the school is both learning and teacher centered and drives continual

improvement through the sharing of best practice

Core Priorities

Current Picture (April - July
2018) / Sep 18 Baseline

Desired Outcomes

Impact and Evaluation
(How will success be
measured?)

2.3a: Team development
opportunities prioritised in
timetable design

2.3a: Some teams have
opportunities through
unintended timetabling,
however for the majority
team collaboration during
the school dayis limited.

2.3a All teams have a
timetabled opportunity to
work collaboratively during
the two week cycle.

2.3a: Have teams been
able to meetregularlyon a
two weekly cycle?

Have learning designs
been evaluated, reviewed |
and refined?

Has the quality of teaching
and learning improved as a
result of this development
time?

2.3b: Developing
leadership capacityatall
levels of the organisation

2.3b: There are many
colleagues in new
leadership positions. Not
all roles within the school
hawe a clear line of
succession. There is an
established lead learner
team. The learner
leadership team across
cohorts is less active.

2.3b: Quality of leadership
is improved at all lewvels of
the organisation.

Leadership opportunities

are created to allow for
greater development and
progression.

2.3b: Have additional
leadership opportunities
been designed for staff and
learners?

Is there an increase in
uptake of leadership

_lopportunities ?

Do colleagues feel
supported in improving their
leadership ability?

2.3c: Stafflearning
programme ensures
effective induction and
transition.

2.3c: Initial induction this
year is of a high quality for
trainees and new
colleagues. Support of new
colleagues in varying roles
and experience could be
developed further. Ongoing
induction needs better
support, and colleagues
transitioning to and from the
school need a more
defined programme of
support.

2.3c: All colleagues feel
well supported and are
equipped with the
necessary knowledge to
perform their role well.

2.3c: Do colleagues feel
supported?

Do new staff have the
appropriate knowledge of
school supportand
systems?

Is support personalised to
meetindividual needs?

Do we have an entrance/ext
meeting?

Do link colleagues have the
relevantsupportto make -
transitions effective?

Strategic Intent 2.3 Outcome Summary: So that....Leadership opportunities across the organisation enable all

parties to further develop their confidence and capacity for improvement
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Public Benefit

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the Trustees have given careful consideration to the Charity
Commission guidance on public benefit. This states that a public benefit entity is one whose primary objective is
to provide goods or services for the general public, community or social benefit and where any equity is provided
with a view to supporting the entity’s primary objectives rather than with a view to providing a financial return to
equity providers, Shareholders or Members.

The Trust's aims and achievements are set out within this Report and all its charitable activities are undertaken
to further its charitable purposes for public benefit. The Trust operates a School for learners aged 11 to 16
serving a catchment area in and around Coggeshall, Essex. It has a learner capacity of 1,050 and had a roll of
976 in the school census on 4 October 2018. Intake is based on sibling and catchment area criteria.

Strategic Report
Achievements and Performance
Leadership and Management

Since the start of the year the Leadership Team has undergone a number of changes. There was a reduction in
the number of Assistant Headteachers from six to four. This has taken the Leadership Team to a group of seven
members of staff. There has been a tradition of rotation regarding the responsibilities of Leadership Team
members which began towards the latter part of the year. After a restructure of responsibilities in the summer
term the leadership of the School can be broadly categorised into two areas: well-being and curriculum. A
Deputy Head leads each of these areas along with a group of two Assistant Heads. The impact of the restructure
has enabled the alignment of the development priorities of the school with Ofsted foci.

Headteacher
(Strategic direction/Leadership and Management)

Deputy Headteacher Deputy Headteacher
(Well Being) (Curriculum)
2 X Assistant Heads 2 X Assistant Heads
(Inclusion): (Learner well-being) (Outcomes/T&L) (Staff Learning/T&L)

The School continues to engage in an outward facing manner with a range of partnerships such as: North West
Association of Secondary Headteachers Essex (ASHE); the Professional Learning Network (PLN) — a local
Teaching School and training provider; the Colchester Teacher Training Consortium (CTTC), and Mid Essex
Initial Teacher Training (MEITT). The Professional Learning Network continues to second one of our teachers to
lead the operational elements of their organisation.

Teachers and Leaders have engaged with a number of leadership development programmes over the last year
through DfE opportunity area funding; these include National Professional Qualifications for Middle Leaders,
Senior Leaders, Headship and Executive Leaders (NPQML, NPQSL, NPQH, NPQEL).

Teaching, Learning and Assessment

To support the continual focus on providing a more personalised learning model, the use of Google Classroom
and Google sites has been rolled out across all subjects. To complement this IT strategy several historic
systems have now been retired so that a less is more approach may be taken to avoid unnecessary bureaucracy
and to ensure that all systems communicate with each other. This has freed up teachers to spend more time on
the things that matter — teaching children.

The School continues to use an upwards convergence model to tackle improvement with the aim of ensuring
that aspiration and challenge remain at the forefront of teaching and learning. Differentiation continues to be
achieved by targeting and teaching to the top and scaffolding down rather than to the middle and scaffolding out.
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To support teachers to continually develop there is now a much greater focus on the use of evidence and
educational research. The R&D and coaching teams now work under the newly appointed Associate Assistant
Headteacher for Teaching and L.earning. This has joined up all areas of staff development. A major focus of staff
development this year was the November Partnership learning day. This day involved every teacher visiting
another school for the day to look at a particular area of practice: These visits informed action research projects
that staff worked on over the year. The year culminated in a presentation of flndmgs to all staff in line with our
commitment to mobilise and share knowledge.

Learning walks are now a key part of our evaluation of teaching and learning. These work alongside the research

and coaching teams and are designed to be more developmental rather than act as a monitoring tool. These

developments have created a richer dialogue between teachers and have helped to achieve a knowledge
mobilisation culture within the organisation.

Outcomes

Summary of summer 2019 exam results compared to previous year

Attainment and progress have significantly improved over the last year. However, there are some significant
differences between the performance of English and Maths.

2019 2018 Diff
KS2 APS 28.9 29.4 05
Progress 8 -0.36 -0.7 0.34
Attainment 8 437 429 ) 0.8

English j’l" Maths 60.60% 60% 0.60%

English 2':‘* Maths 33.80% 28% 5.80%
English A8 10.2 9.8 0.4
Maths A8 8.2 78 04
Ebacc A8 12.7 124 03
Open A8 13 12.8 0.2

Key Performance Indicators

Honywood Community Science School converted to Academy status on 1st May 2011, a school rated “Good” in
2013 and again in March 2017.

See section above for examination results.
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The most recent benchmarking data available (2017-18) shows the Academy to have improved self-generated
funding from 5th to 4th out of the 20 comparative academies. Our Total Expenditure on supplies and services
has worsened slightly from 3rd lowest to 5th lowest, and 7th lowest per pupil. Areas where our expenditure was
above average remains staffing, where we had the highest absolute total, and the 2nd highest per pupil total in
2017-18. Teaching staff costs were 3rd highest per pupil, Education support staff and admin and clerical staff the
2nd highest compared to the 20 comparative academies. We do have an Autism Hub and a Pre-School! both of
which require higher staff to pupil ratios, but aside from this, general staffing levels have been reviewed and staff
numbers have been reduced in 2018-19 from a headcount of 181 to 170, generating a reduction in staff costs of -
more than 5.5% (excluding pension service costs) in a year when pension contributions for teachers rose
significantly. Part of our reasons for joining the Saffron Academy Trust is to enable us to make savings on the
purchase of supplies and services as part of a larger organisation and by centralising some administrative
functions to generate further savings.

Going Concern

The Academy transferred its operating actitivites, assets and liabilities to Saffron Academy Trust on 1 September
2019 and has ceased its operating activities. All assets and liabilities were transferred to Saffron Academy Trust
at their carrying amounts; as a result, the accounts have been prepared on a basis other than the going concern
basis.

Financial Review

Most of the Academy's income is obtained from the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of
recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. These grants, received from the ESFA
during the year ended 31st August 2019 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

The Academy has also been in receipt of the Devolved Formula Capital Grant and the Condition Improvement
Fund from the ESFA for window replacement and the installation of a new fire alarm system. In accordance with
the Charities Statement of Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ (SORP 2015), such
grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income, in the fixed asset fund. The
restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the
assets concerned. :

The principal source of funding for the Academy is the GAG and other grants that it receives from the Education
and Skills Funding agency (ESFA). For the year ended 31 August 2019 the Trust received £5,961,444 of GAG
and other funding (excluding capital funding). A high percentage of this income is spent on wages and salaries
and support costs to deliver the Academy’s primary objective of the provision of education. During the year the
Trust spent £6,201,234 on general running costs (excluding capital expenditure and depreciation). The Academy
brought forward from 17/18, £77,572 unrestricted funds and £47,957 restricted general funding. The carry
forward for 18/19 is £138,184 in unrestricted funding and £21,555 restricted general funding .

At 31st Aﬁgust 2019 the net book value of fixed assets was £11,437,519 and movements in tangible fixed assets
are shown in Note 14 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing education and
the associated support services to the pupils of the Academy.

In accordance with Accounting Standard FRS102, the Academy received an actuarial assessment of the pension
scheme deficit relating to the Local Government Pension Scheme that is provided for non-teaching staff. The
deficit balance is included within the Balance Sheet as at 31st August 2019 at an amount of £3,518,000 and
supporting details are included in the notes to the accounts. This projected deficit does not present the Academy
with a current liquidity problem as it is making additional contributions to-the pension scheme to reduce the
deficit over time on the basis of actuarial advice.
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Reserves Policy

As part of the transfer to Academy status, the Trustees are in a position to determine an appropriate level of free
reserves (total funds less the amount held in tangible fixed assets, restricted funds and designated funds). The
minimum level of free reserves to be held should be £30,000. The reason for this is to provide sufficient working
capital to provide resources to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance and to cover
delays between spending and receipt of grants.

The Academy held fund balances at 31st August 2019 of £8,243,727. The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance
is £11,601,988.

Investment Policy

With the conversion to Academy status this provides the School with the facility to look at investment
opportunities. The Trustees have taken the decision that no such investments should be undertaken at this time.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Academy is aware of the risks and uncertainties relating to pupil numbers and Government funding for
Academies. In addition it takes account of other changes that impact on Academy funds such as increases in
rates of pay, employer contributions for pensions, NI and the apprenticeship levy. The Academy has prepared
appropriate budget forecasts for its strategic plans and modelled scenarios based on key planning assumptions.
As a result of this work the Trustees are confident of the Academy's long term financial viability.

Risk Management

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in particular those relating to the
specific teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Academy and its finances. The
Trustees have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the School faces, especially in the
operational areas (eg in relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying and school trips) and in relation to the
control of finance. They have introduced systems, including operational procedures (eg vetting of new staff and
visitors, supervision of school grounds) and internal financial controls (see below) in order to minimise risk.
Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The
Academy has an effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail in the following
statement.

The Trustees have considered the need for a specific internal audit function and have decided not to appoint an
Internal Auditor, but instead have procured an Internal Audit Support Service from Schools’ Choice. On a termly
basis Schools’ Choice undertake an independent review of the financial systems and provide a written report
providing feedback on how the Academies Financial affairs are being discharged. The Chair of the Resources
Committee presents this report to all Trustees. The report includes action points identifying any areas for
improvement.

This provides the Governing body with assurance that:

the financial responsibilities of the Governing Body are being properily discharged
resources are being managed in an efficient, economical and effective manner
sound systems of internal financial control are being maintained and

financial considerations are fully taken into account in reaching decisions

These arrangements can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded,
transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and that material errors or irregularities are, either prevented
or would be detected within a timely period.
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Fundraising

The Academy does not employ professional fundraisers.

Fundraising activities take place during the year, and these are limited to events such as a sponsored walk and

non-uniform days and generated approximately £8,900 in 2018-19. The money is donated by the frie

nds and

families of the pupils' of the Academy and the income raised is retained by the Academy to be spent on

improvements or resources for the benefit of the pupils and the community.

Plans for Future Periods

On the 1 September 2019, the School joined Saffron Academy Trust.

Funds held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others

We are not acting as Custodian Trustees on behalf of others.

Auditor

In so far as the Trustee‘s are aware:

. There is no relevant audit information of which the Charitable Company’s Auditor is unaware; and
. The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the Auditor is aware of that information.

Approved by the Governing Body on and signed on its behalf by:
26 / L /20 I"-l

e
Mr Timothy Styles '
Chair
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Honywood Community Science
School has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Honywood Community Science School and the Secretary of State for Education. The Headteacher is also
responsible for reporting to the Governing Body any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
statement of trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during the year, with
additional committees with specific responsibilities for Curriculum and Resources each meeting twice per term.
The Board met fewer than six times during the year. The Board is satisfied that through the use of sub-
committees it maintains effective oversight of funds. Details of such sub-committees are noted below.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Angela Ward 5 5
Tayrina Ferguson 4 5
Dawn Mcintosh (Chair resigned 03.09.18) 0 0
Scott Caygill (Staff) 4 5
Angela Hali 1 3
Helen Mulley 5 5 -
James Munro (Staff) 5 5
James Saunders, Headteacher and Accounting 5 5
Officer

Timothy Styles, Chair, appointed 03.09.18 5 5
Tracey Thomson 5 5
Sarah Warren 5 5
Alison Lightly (resigned 26.04.19) 4 4
Charlotte Cottrell 0 0
Briony Hughes 0 0

The composition of the Board of Trustees and resignations & appointments are shown in brackets.

Good governance and leadership at School level plays a vital part in achieving better outcomes for children and
young people. As a Governing Body our role is to work with the School in setting the strategic direction and to
monitor and support the performance of the School. Our key aim is to ensure that youngsters are attending a
successful School which provides them with a good education, supports their well-being and equips them with
the skills for the wider world outside of Honywood to ensure future success and happiness in their lives.

Just as the model of teaching at Honywood is changing and evolving, we too need to change and evolve in order

to ensure we are asking the right questions and can contribute to delivering the shared vision of a world leading
School. After all we are the guardians of the changes which are happening.
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Governance (continued)

The membership of the Board of Trustees should focus on skills. While all current and prospective Trustees
should commit to continuing professional development to acquire new skills, filling a vacancy on the Governing
Body provides a specific opportunity to fill any skills gaps. The DfE Trustees’ Handbock makes it very clear that
the most important consideration in Trustee appointment / election is recruiting people with the right skills,
knowledge and experience. To ensure that this is achieved, governing bodies are advised to conduct a skills gap
analysis for any Trustee vacancy and then actively recruit people with the relevant attributes. This includes
Parent Trustees by supplying a realistic job description of the Trustee role when advertising a vacancy.

As written in our ‘Articles of Association’ 4 years is our ‘term of office’; however, co-opted Trustees are
encouraged to consider their positions on an annual basis in the interests of the Board of Trustees remaining
invigorated and forward thinking. This will ensure that we are providing the oversight and strategic direction
required to see Honywood through the rapidly changing educational and political environment.

The Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to assist the decision
making of the Board of Trustees, by enabling more detailed consideration to be given to the best means of
fulfilling the Board's responsibility to ensure sound management of the Academy's finances and resources,

_including proper planning, monitoring and probity. To make appropriate comments and recommendations on
such matters to the Board of Trustees on a regular basis. Major issues are referred to the Board of Trustees for
ratification.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Timothy Styles
Angela Ward
James Munro
Tayrina Ferguson
Tracey Thomson
Scott Cayagill
Alison Lightly
James Saunders
Angela Hall

cCoOMNOIOANN®D
AOAODODOOO®D

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer has delivered improved value
for money during the year by:

Improving educational outcomes
The Academy strives to ensure educational standards continue to improve for the benefit of pupils and wider
society, and that all pupils have the opportunity to raise their levels of attainment using a wide variety of

strategies.

Investing in staff learning and appropriate resources have:

. improved the quality of teaching
. improved the quality of learning support
. improved the quality of pastoral care

Page 22



HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money (continued)

Financial Governance and oversight

. during 2018-19 a competitive tender process was used for the supply of replacement iPad devices and a 3
year operating lease. The winning tender for supply compared very favourably to the previous lease
saving the academy £19,246 per annum for the duration of the lease.

. during 2018-19, a competitive tender process was used for a 48 month lease for multifunctional devices to
replace the academy’s printers and photocopiers. Tenders were submitted by 7 suppliers. The Trustees
agreed to award the contact to the lowest priced tender, thereby saving the academy in the region of
£13,500 over the 4 year period.

. during 2018-19 a competitive tender process was used for the purchase of 90 HP Laptops. Tenders were
submitted by 7 suppliers. Factors other than price were considered, such as battery life, length and type
of warranty, weight of the device and processing speed.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Honywood Community Science School for the
year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and financial
statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy's
significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of
approval of the Annual Report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees.

The risk and control framework
The Academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information

and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.
In particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;
. regular reviews by the Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the

forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and

identification and management of risks.
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The risk and control framework {continued)

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint
Schools' Choice as Internal Auditor.

The Internal Auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

Payroll

Purchasing

Petty cash

Governance

Monitoring

Review

Audit

Income

Planning cycle & budget
Inventory

Security, tax, data security and insurance

On a quarterly basis, the Internal Auditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the Resources Committee on
the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Trustees' financial responsibilities.

All internal Auditor Reports have been received by the Trustees for review as planned. All significant findings
from these visits have been appropriately addressed by the Senior Management Team and Trustees.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of '
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the Internal Auditor;

the work of the external Auditors; )

the financial management and governance self-assessment process; and

the work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Resources committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of
the system is in place.

Approved by the Board of Trustees on 26 //( /20(7 and signed on their behalf by:

Mr Timothy Styles Mr James Saunders
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Honywood Community Science School | have considered my responsibility to notify the
Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy, under the funding agreement
in place between the Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had
due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

| confirm that | and the Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds
by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Academy's
funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

)
Mr J Saunders
Accounting Officer

Date: 26 /H(t&\
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Trustees (who are also the Directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Charitable Company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2018 to 2019;
e make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

Charitable Company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Charitable Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Charitable Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Charitable Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Charitable Company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Charitable Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by the Board of Trustees on and signed on its behalf by:
26 [11 201 —
| | (ST T tq <
Mr Timothy Styles

Chair of Trustees
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Honywood Community Science School (the 'Academy') for the year
ended 31 August 2019 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement
of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparationis applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard
102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2015
and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

o give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2019 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the Education & Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our Report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufflment and
appropriate to provide a baS|s for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note 1.2 in the financial statements,which describes the basis of preparation of the financial
statements. The Trust transferred its operations, assets and liabilities to Saffron Academy Trust on 1 September
2019 and has ceased operating. As required by UK accounting standards, the Trustees have prepared the
financial statements on the basis that the Trust is no longer a going concern. No material adjustments arose as a
result of ceasing to apply the going concern basis. All assets and liabilities were transferred to Saffron Academy
Trust at their carrying amounts. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL (CONTINUED) '

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. Other information
includes the Reference and administrative details, the Trustees' Report including the Strategic report, and the
Governance statement and Accounting Officer Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our Report, we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

o the information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

. the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements. :

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trust remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL (CONTINUED) -

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement, the Trustees (who are also the Directors of
the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. '

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located ‘on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' Report. ‘ . :

Use of our report

This Report is made solely to the Academy's Members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's Members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its
Members, as a body, for our audit work, for this Report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Gary Miller (senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of ’

Price Bailey LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors

Causeway House

1 Dane Street

Bishop's Stortford

Hertfordshire

CM23 3BT

18 December 2019
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL.
(A Company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO HONYWOOD
COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 29 August 2019 and further to the requirements of
the Education & Skills Funding Agency.(ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019,
we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Honywood Community Science School during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019
have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This Report is made solely to Honywood Community Science School and the ESFA in accordance with the terms
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Honywood Community
Science School and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Honywood
Community Science School and ESFA, for our work, for this Report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Honywood Community Science School's Accounting Officer and
the Reporting Accountant )

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Honywood Community Science School's
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 21 April 2011 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2018, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and -
income received during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scdpe than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
. might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy's income and expenditure.
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO HONYWOOD
‘COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

. An assessment of the risk of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance

. Consideration and corroboration of the evidence supporting the Accounting Officer's statement on
regularity, propriety and compliance and how the Academy complies with the framework of authorities.

. Evaluation of the general control environment of the Academy, extending the procedures required for
financial statements to include regularity, propriety and compliance

. Discussions with and representations from the Accounting Officer and other key management personnel.

. An extension of substantive testing from our audit of the financial statements to cover matters pertaining
to regularity, in order to support the regularity conclusion, mcludmg governance internal controls,
procurement and the application of income.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the

expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 has not been

- applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the flnanClaI transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them. :

Reporting Accountant

Price Bailey LLP

' Date:. 18 December 2019
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL

(A Company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Note

Income from:

Donations and capital
grants

Charitable activities
Other trading activities
Investments

o O A~ W

Total income
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities 7

Total expenditure

Net movement in
funds before other
recognised
gains/(losses)

Other recognised
gains/(losses):

Actuarial losses on
defined benefit
pension schemes 25

Net movement in
funds

Reconciliation of
funds:

Total funds brought
forward

Net movement in funds

Total funds carried
forward

Restricted As restated

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 -

£ £ £ £ £

5,730 240,673 686,080 932,483 250,410
182,445 5,298,858 - 5,481,303 5,488,355
111,622 121,777 - 233,399 410,035
339 - - 339 288
300,136 5,661,308 686,080 6,647,524 6,149,088
239,524 5,961,710 806,332 7,007,566 6,653,951
239,524 5,961,710 806,332 7,007,566 6,653,951
60,612 (300,402) (120,252) (360,042) (504,863)
- (553,000) - (553,000) 670,000
60,612 (853,402) (120,252) (913,042) 165,137
77,572 (2,643,043) 11,722,240 9,156,769 8,991,632
60,612 (853,402) (120,252) (913,042) 165,137
138,184 (3,496,445) 11,601,988 8,243,727 9,156,769

The notes on pages 35 to 60 form part of these financial statements.
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL

(A Company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07592309

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

Note
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13
Current assets
Stocks 14
Debtors 15
Cash at bank and in hand 24
Creditors: due within one year 16
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: due after more than one year 17
Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 25
Total net assets
Funds of the Academy
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 19
Restricted income funds 19
Restricted funds excluding pension liability 19
Pension reserve 19
Total restricted funds 19
Unrestricted income funds 19

Total funds

The financial statements on pages 32 to 60 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on

/
Timothy Styles

Chair of Trustees
Date:

2019
£
11,437,519
980
473,952
483,190
958,122
(571,930)
386,192
11,823,711
(61,984)
11,761,727
(3,518,000)
8,243,727
11,601,988
21,555
11,623,543
(3,518,000)
8,105,543
138,184
8,243,727

and are signed on their behalf, by:

As restated

2018
£
11,712,085
3,550
175,481
392,614
571,645
(405,661)
165,984
11,878,069
(30,300)
11,847,769
(2,691,000)
9,156,769
11,722,240
47,957
11,770,197
(2,691,000)
9,079,197
77,572
9,156,769

26/ 0 (20/7
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL

(A Company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 35 to 60 form part of these financial statements

Note

21

23

22

24

2019 2018

£ £
(571,456) 165,002
630,348 4,674
31,684 (5,050)
90,576 164,626
392,614 227,988
483,190 392,614
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Accounting policies

14

1.2

1.3

14

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements. of the Academy, which-is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Honywood Community Science School meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.
The functional and presentational currency is Pounds Sterling.
Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that since the Academy has joined The Saffron Academy Trust on 1 September
2019, the Academy is no longer a going concern and therefore have not adopted this basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Company status

The Academy is a Company limited by guarantee. Those Members who are Trustees are noted on

page 3. In the event of the Academy being wound up, the liability in respect of the guarantee is

limited to £10 per Member.

The Academy's registered office is Westfield Drive, Coggeshall, Colchester, Essex, CO6 1PZ.
Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Accounting policies (continued)

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

Income (continued)

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Academy has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the Academy's educational operations,

including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to

charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Academy; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the

Government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and -
depreciated over their expected useful economic life.
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
{A Company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.7

1.8

1.9

Tangible fixed assets (continued)
Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Leasehold land and buildings - 2 -5%

Furniture and equipment - 10%
Plant and machinery - 10 -20%
Computer equipment - 33%
Mator vehicles - 20%

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Taxation

The Academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Stocks
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for

obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed
and variable overheads.

1.10 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due. '

1.11 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.12 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities and provisions are recognised when there is an abligation at the balance sheet date as a
result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement,
and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount
that the Academy anticipates it will pay to settie the debt or the amount it has received as advanced
payments for the goods or services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate
that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within
interest payable and similar charges.
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Accounting policies (continued)

1.13 Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

1.14 Financial instruments

The Academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Cash
at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 16 and 17. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.15 Pensions

The Academy operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the pension charge represents
the amounts payable by the Academy to the fund in respect of the year.

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Accounting policies (continued)

1.16 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. ’

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Trustees make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the Actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2019. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Income from donations and capital grants

Restricted As restated

Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total Total

funds funds funds funds funds

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018

£ £ £ £ £

Donations 5,730 240,673 - 246,403 143,028

Capital grants - - 686,080 686,080 107,382

Total 2019 5,730 240,673 686,080 932,483 250,410
Total 2018 as restated 6,883 136,145 107,382 250,410
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Income from donations and capital grants (continued)

In 2018, income from donations was £143,028 of which £136,145 was restricted and £6,883 was
unrestricted. The 2018 figures for donations have been restated to include £129,808 of trip income that
had previously been included within funding for the Academy's provision of education (see also Note 4).

in 2018, income from capital gi'ants was £107,382, this was in relation to restricted fixed assets.

Funding for the Academy's provision of education

As restated

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds -
2019 2019 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 4,737,296 4,737,296 4,789,043
Other DfE / ESFA grants - 228,249 228,249 191,546
- 4,965,545 4,965,545 4,980,589
Other Government grants
Local Authority grants - 333,313 333,313 313,107
Other Government grants 500 - - 500 3,918
500 333,313 333,813 317,025
Other funding
Catering income 181,945 - 181,945 190,741
181,945 - 181,945 190,741
Total 2019 182,445 5,298,858 5,481,303 5,488,355
Total 2018 as restated 191,241 5,297,114 5,488,355

In 2018, income from DfE/ESFA grants was £4,980,589 all of which was restricted.

In 2018, income from other Government grants was £317,025 all 6f which was restricted.

In 2018, income from catering was £190,741 all of which was unrestricted.

The 2018 figures have been restated to exclude £129,808 of trip income that is now included within

income from donations (see also Note 3).
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Income from other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

2019 2019 2019 2018

£ £ £ £

Income from services provided . 62,221 121,777 183,998 362,933

Hire of facilities 18,331 - 18,331 18,577

ltems sold 16,527 - 16,5627 19,835

Fundraising 8,936 - 8,936 8,690
Other income 5,607 - 5,607 -

Total 2019 111,622 121,777 233,399 410,035

Total 2018 202,995 207,040 410,035

In 2018, income from services provided was £362,933 of which £207,040 was restricted and £155,893
was unrestricted. . '

In 2018, income from the hire of facilities was £18,577 of which all was unrestricted.
In 2018, income for items sold was £19,835 of which all was unrestricted.

In 2018, income from fundraising was £8,690 of which all was unrestricted.

Investment income

. Unrestricted Total Total

funds funds © funds

2019 2019 2018

£ £ £

Bank interest 339 339 288

In 2018, all investment income was in relation to unrestricted funds.

Page 41



HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
{A Company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Expenditure

Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018

£ £ £ £ £

Direct costs 4,056,976 - 685,555 4,742,531 4,770,102

Support costs 804,849 1,057,816 402,370 2,265,035 1,883,849

Total 2019 4,861,825 1,057,816 1,087,925 7,007,566 6,653,951
Total 2018 : 5,200,777 584,534 868,640 6,653,951

In 2019, of the total expenditure, £239,524 (2018 - £469,870) was from unrestricted funds, £5,961,712
(2018 - £5,858,224) was from restricted funds and £806,332 (2018 - £319,907) was from restricted fixed

asset funds.

In 2018, direct expenditure consisted of £4,218,031 staff costs énd £552,071 of other costs.

In 2018, support expenditure consisted of £982,746 staff costs, £584,534 premises costs and £310,619

of other costs.
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Charitable Activities
2019 2018

4,742,531 4,770,102

Direct costs
2,265,035 1,877,899

Support costs

7,007,566 6,648,001
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Charitable Activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs
Depreciation
Technology costs
Premises costs
Other support costs
Governance costs

Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Impairment

Auditors remuneration - audit
Auditors remuneration - other services

Staff cost

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

2019 2018
£ £
804,849 982,746
333,769 378,319
10,561 2,215
724,047 206,215
386,648 298,489
5,161 9,915
2,265,035 1,877,899
2019 2018
£ £
141,759 169,655
333,769 322,255
- 56,064
6,000 4,960
4,000 1,660
2019 2018
£ £
3,694,054 3,930,145
335,431 359,440
832,340 911,192
4,861,825 5,200,777

Page 44



10.

HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019
Staff cost (continued) A
b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:

2019 2018

No. No.

Teachers 61 70
Administration and support 100 102
Management 9 9
170 181

c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2019 2018

No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 1 2
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 1 -

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustees and Senior Management Team
as listed page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy
was £516,033 (2018: £626,418).
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Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy. The Headteacher and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of Headteacher and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2019 2018
£ £
James Saunders, Headteacher Remuneration 80,000 - 30,000 -
and Accounting Officer 85,000 35,000
Pension contributions paid 10,000 - 5,000 -
15,000 10,000
James Munro Remuneration 60,000 - 60,000 -
’ 65,000 65,000
Pension contributions paid 10,000 - 5,000 -
15,000 10,000
Scott Caygill Remuneration 50,000 - 20,000 -
. 55,000 25,000
Pension contributions paid 5,000 - 0-5,000

10,000

During the year ended 31 August 2019, expenses totalling £801 were reimbursed or paid directly to 3
Trustees (2018 - £244 to 2 Trustees).

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Academy has purchased insurance to protect
Trustees and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
Academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £2,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the
year ended 31 August 2019 was included within the toal insurance cost.
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Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2018
Additions

Disposals

At 31 August 2019
Depreciation
At 1 September 2018

Charge for the year
On disposals

At 31 August 2019

Net book value

At 31 August 2019

At 31 August 2018

HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL

(A Company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Long-term
leasehold Furniture and Plant and Computer Motor
property equipment machinery equipment vehicles Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
13,340,099 205,929 266,380 332,289 10,500 14,155,197
8,489 14,351 - 36,363 - 59,203
- - - (145,889) - (145,889)
13,348,588 220,280 266,380 222,763 10,500 14,068,511
1,958,348 97,390 52,252 324,622 10,500 2,443,112
275,943 21,534 26,346 9,946 - 333,769
- - - (145,889) - (145,889)
2,234,291 118,924 78,598 188,679 10,500 2,630,992
11,114,297 101,356 187,782 34,084 - 11,437,519
11,381,751 108,539 214,128 7,667 - 11,712,085
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Stocks

Finished goods and goods for resale

Debtors

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income
VAT recoverable

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Salix loans

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2018
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous periods

2019 2018
£ £
980 3,550
2019 2018
£ £
27,716 38,217
1,413 985
380,543 98,819
64,280 37,460
473,952 175,481
2019 2018
£ £
6,939 -
30,237 145,077
82,672 86,017
78,585 83,564
373,497 91,003
571,930 405,661
2019 2018
£ £
44,612 16,523
73,548 44,612
(44.612) (16,523)
73,548 44,612

Resources deferred at the period end relate to contributions towards future educational visits, local

authority pre school grants and rates relief income received in advance.
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Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2019 2018
. £ £
Salix loans 61,984 30,300

The aggregate amount of liabilities payable or repayable wholly or in part more than five years after the
reporting date is:

2019 2018

£ £

Payable or repayable by instalments 14,978 10,100
14,978 10,100

Prior year adjustments

A prior year adjustment has been made to reallocate certain fixed assets previously included within
unrestricted funds into the restricted fixed asset fund. The value of these assets at 31 August 2018 was
£182,617 (2017: £235,079). The value of the unrestricted funds have been restated in note 19.
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Statement of funds

Unrestricted
funds

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
general funds
GAG

Other DfE/ESFA
grants

Other
Government
grants

Other restricted
funds

Pension reserve

Réstricted fixed
asset funds

Fixed assets

DfE/ESFA
capital grants

Total Restricted
funds

Total funds

Restated

balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £
77,572 300,136 (239,524) - - 138,184

24,282 4,737,296  (4,761,578) - - -
- 228,249 (226,370) - - 1,879

- 333,313 (333,313) - - -
23,675 362,450 (366,449) - - 19,676
(2,691,000) - (274,000) - (653,000) (3,518,000)
(2,643,043) 5,661,308 (5,961,710) - (553,000) (3,496,445)
11,712,085 - (333,769) 59,203 - 11,437,519
10,155 686,080 (472,563) (59,203) - 164,469
11,722,240 686,080 (806,332) - - 11,601,988
9,079,197 6,347,388  (6,768,042) - (553,000) 8,105,543
6,647,524  (7,007,566) - 8,243,727

9,156,769

(553,000)
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Statement of funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
Unrestricted funds

This represents income received which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the
Academy.

General Annual Grant (GAG)
This represnets funding from the ESFA to cover the costs of recurrent expenditure.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2019.

Other Government grants

This represents various grants from local and national Government bodies for the provision of specific
services to pupils of the School. These grants are generally restrictive in nature.

Other DfE and ESFA grants

This represents funding to be used to help raise achievement and improve outcomes for pupils from low
income families who are eligible for free school meals.

Other restricted funds

This fund represents contributions made by parents to the running of educational visits for the pupils of the
School and the associated costs of running the trips.

Pension reserve

This fund represents the Academy’s share of the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) transferred on conversion from a state controlled school.

Transferred on conversion

The value of assets recognised on conversion to an Academy.

DfE/ESFA capital grants

Provided by the Government for specific capital projects including the annual contribution.
Capital expenditure from GAG

Value of GAG funding used for capital projects less related depreciation.

Capital expenditure from other funds

Value of capital funding from other sources which has been utilised for capital projects less related
depreciation.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2019.

Page 51



HONYWOOD COMMUNITY SCIENCE SCHOOL
(A Company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019
Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year as restated is as follows:

Balance at As restated Balance at
1 September As restated Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2017 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2018
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds 88,573 406,407 (417,408) - - 77,572
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant - 4,639,043  (4,608,992) (5,769) - 24,282
Other DfE/ESFA
grants - 341,546 (341,546) - - -
Other
Government
grants . - 311,525 (311,525) T - -
Other restricted
funds 5,651 343,185 (325,161) - - 23,675
Pension reserve  (3,090,000) - (271,000) - 670,000 (2,691,000)
(3,084,349) 5,635,299  (5,858,224) (5,769) 670,000 (2,643,043)
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Fixed assets 11,987,408 - (378,319) 102,996 - 11,712,085
DfE/ESFA '
capital grants - 107,382 - (97,227) - 10,155
11,987,408 107,382 (378,319) 5,769 - 11,722,240
Total Restricted
funds 8,903,059 5,742,681 (6,236,543) - 670,000 9,079,197
Total funds 8,991,632 6,149,088  (6,653,951) - 670,000 9,156,769
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Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2019 2019 2019 2019

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - 11,437,519 11,437,519
Current assets 138,184 324,672 495,266 958,122
Creditors due within one year - (303,117) (268,813) (571,930)
Creditors due in more than one year ' - - (61,984) (61,984)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (3,518,000) - (3,518,000)
Total 138,184  (3,496,445) 11,601,988 8,243,727

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2018 2018 2018 2018

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets . - - 11,712,085 11,712,085
Current assets 85,307 330,682 155,658 571,647
Creditors due within one year (7,733) (282,725) (115,203) (405,661)
Creditors due in more than one year - - (30,300) (30,300)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (2,691,000) - (2,691,000)
77,574  (2,643,043) 9,156,771

Total

11,722,240
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Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

2019 2018
£ £

Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities) (360,042) (504,863)

Adjustments for:

Amortisation - 56,064
Depreciation and disposal of fixed assets 330,637 322,255
Capital grants. from DfE and other capital income (686,080) (107,382)
Interest receivable (339) (288)
Decrease in stocks 2,570 358
Decrease/(increase) in debtors (298,312) (16,629)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 166,110 144,487
Pension adjustments ) 274,000 271,000
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities (571,456) 165,002

Cash flows frc_Sm financing activities

2019 2018
) £ £
Cash inflows from new borrowing 31,684 -
Repayments of borrowing - (5,050)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 31,684 (5,050}
Cash flows from investing activities
2019 2018
£ £
Interest received 339 288
Proceeds from the sale of intangible assets 3,132 -
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (59,203) (102,996)
Capital grants from DfE Group 686,080 107,382
Net cash provided by investing activities . ' 630,348 4,674
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Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2019 2018

£ £

Cash in hand 483,190 392,614
Total cash and cash equivalents 483,190 392,614

Pension commitments

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Essex County Council. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31
March 2016.

Contributions amounting to £75,310 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2019 (2018 - £75,906)
and are included within creditors.

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS or scheme) is a statutory, unfunded, defined benefit occupational
scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 (as amended), and the Teachers'
Pension Scheme Regulations 2014 (as amended). These regulations apply to teachers in schools and
other educational establishments, including academies, in England and Wales that are maintained by local
authorities. In addition, teachers in many independent and voluntary-aided schools and teachers and
lecturers in some establishments of further and higher education may be eligible for membership.
Membership is automatic for full-time teachers and lecturers and, from 1 January 2007, automatic too for
teachers and lecturers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract. Teachers
and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS.

The Teachers' Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account

Although members may be employed by various bodies, their retirement and other pension benefits are
set out in regulations made under the Superannuation Act (1972) and Public Service Pensions Act (2013)
and are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members
contribute on a 'pay as you go ‘basis — contributions from members, along with those made by employers,
are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Acts.

The Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 require an annual account, the Teachers' Pension Budgeting
and Valuation Account, to be kept of receipts and expenditure (including the cost of pension increases).
From 1 April 2001, the Account has been credited with a real rate of return, which is equivalent to
assuming that the balance in the Account is invested in notional investments that produce that real rate of
return.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

)
The latest valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme has now taken place, in line with directions issued
by HM Treasury and using membership data as at 31 March 2016. As a result of this valuation TPS
employers will pay an increased contribution rate of 23.68% from September 2019 (this includes the
administration levy of 0.8%). The timing of the implementation is to align its introduction with employers’
budget planning cycles. Until then, employers will pay the current rate of 16.48%.
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Pension commitments (continued)
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £386,835 (2018 - £422,198).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The Academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Scheme Changes

The arrangements for a reformed Teachers' Pension Scheme, in line with the recommendations made by
Lord Hutton, in particular the introduction of a Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) scheme, were
implemented from 1 April 2015.

in December 2018, the Court of Appeal held that transitional protection provisions contained in the
reformed judicial and firefighter pension schemes, introduced as part of public service pension reforms in
2015, gave rise to direct age discrimination and were therefore unlawful. The Supreme Cour, in a
decision made in June 2019, have rejected the Government's application for permission to appeal the
Court of Appeal’s ruling. The case will now be referred to an Employment Tribunal for a decision regarding
the remedy which will need to be offered to those members of the two schemes who were subject of the
age discrimination.

HM Treasury are clear that the ruling has implications for the other public service schemes, including the
Teachers' Pension Scheme. Those implications are currently being considered and any impact on
scheme costs is expected to be looked at within the next scheme valuation, which is currently scheduled
to be based on April 2020 data and implemented in April 2023.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2019 was £302,000 (2018 -
£284,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £240,000 (2018 - £223,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £62,000 (2018 - £61,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 21.7-
24.2 per cent for employers and 5.5-12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the

event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013. .
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Pension commitments (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

2019

%

Rate of increase in salaries 3.70
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.20
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.85
Inflation assumption (CPI) . 2.20
Infiation assumption (RP) 3.20
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50.00

2018
%
3.80
2.30
2.65
2.30
3.30
50.00

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2019
Years
Retiring today
Males 21.3
Females 23.6
Retiring in 20 years
Males 23.0
Females 254

2018
Years

22.3
24.8

245
271

At the 31 August 2019 the Academy had a pension liability of £3,518,000 (2018 - £2,691,000). The
sensitivity analysis detailed below would increase/(decrease) the closing defined benefit obligation in the

following way:

Sensitivity analysis

2019

£

Discount rate +0.1% ’ (151,000)
Discount rate -0.1% 155,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase 240,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease (231,000)
CPl rate +0.1% 137,000
CPl rate -0.1% ' 133,000

2018
£
(119,000)
122,000
(167,000)
106,000
(108,000)
106,000
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Pension commitments (continued)

The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

At 31 August At 31 August

2019 2018
£ £
Equities 1,726,000 1,445,000
Bonds 154,000 254,000
Gilts 151,000 -
Property | 219,000 202,000
Cash and other liquid assets : 80,000 77,000
Alternative assets 268,000 203,000
Other managed funds 141,000 87,000
Total market value of assets 2,739,000 2,268,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £201,000 (2018 - £125,000).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
Current service cost (377,000) (415,000)
Past service cost (68,000) -
lnterest income 64,000 52,000
Interest cost ‘ (132,000) (130,000)
Administrative expenses (1,000) (1,000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities (514,000) (494,000)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
At 1 September 4,959,000 4,982,000
Current service cost ' 377,000 415,000
Past service costs . 68,000 -
Interest cost 132,000 130,000
Employee contributions 62,000 61,000
Actuarial losses 690,000 (597,000)
Benefits paid (31,000) (32,000)

At 31 August 6,257,000

4,959,000
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(A Company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2019 2018

£ £

At 1 September 2,268,000 1,892,000
Interest income (64,000) 52,000
Employee contributions ' 62,000 61,000
Benefits paid (31,000) (32,000)
Administration expenses - (1,000) (1,000)
Actuarial gains 137,000 73,000
Employer contributions 240,000 223,000
At 31 August : 2,611,000 2,268,000

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2019 the Academy had commitments to make future minirhum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

2019 2018

£ £

Not later than 1 year 116,772 150,808
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 218,931 47,528
335,703 198,336

Members’ liability

Each Member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a Member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
Member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted

befare he/she ceases to be a Member.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy's operations and the composition of the Board of Trustees being
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations
in which a Trustee has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's
length and in accordance with the Academy's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain Trustees'

remuneration and expenses aiready disclosed in note 11.
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Post balance sheet events

The Academy transferred its operating activities, assets and liabilities to The Saffron Academy Trust on 1
September 2019 and has ceased its operating activities. All assets and liabilities were transferred to The
Saffron Academy Trust at their carrying amounts.
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